
	

__________________________________________________________________________ 
763-479-0527 (Phone)                               1920 County Road 90                                   763-479-0528 (Fax) 

Independence, MN 55359 
http://independence.govoffice.com 

	

CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING 
TUESDAY, JULY 12, 2016 
 
 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING TIME: 7:30 PM 
 
1. Call to Order 
 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 

 
3. Roll Call 

 
4. ****Consent Agenda**** 

 
All items listed under Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by Council and will be acted 
on by one motion.  There will be no separate discussion of these items. If discussion is desired, 
that item will be removed from the Consent Agenda and will be considered separately. 
 

a. Approval of City Council minutes from the June 23, 2016 City Council Workshop. 
b. Approval of City Council minutes from the June 28, 2016 City Council Meeting. 
c. Approval of Accounts Payable; Checks numbered 16285-16315. 

 For Information - Checks numbered 16275-16284 are Payroll Checks. 
d. Approval of a Large Assembly Permit as Follows: 

 Running of the Bays Half Marathon  – September 10, 2016 
 MN Ultimate Frisbee Tournament at the Polo Club – July 23 & 24, 2016 

 
5. Set Agenda – Anyone Not On The Agenda Can Be Placed Under Open/Misc.  

 
6. Reports of Boards and Committees by Council and Staff. 

 
7. Public Input on MS4 Permit - to allow interested citizens an opportunity to comment on the 

city’s Storm Water Pollution Prevention Program (SWPPP). 
 

8. Consideration of an Ordinance Amendment to Section 915 - Regulation of Lake Sarah 
Surface Use.  

 
a. Consider an amendment to the ordinance which would revise the removal of the 

no-wake provision to be consistent with the ordinance regulating Lake 
Independence. 



 

 
9. Jeff Arendt (Applicant/Owner) requests that the City consider the following action for the 

property located at 1665 Copeland Road (PID No. 19-118-24-44-0001) in Independence, 
MN: 

 
a. RESOLUTION 16-0712-01:  Considering approval of a rural view lot 

subdivision to allow the subdivision of property into two lots. 
 

10. Open/Misc. 
 
11. Adjourn. 



 

1 
City of Independence 
City Council Work Session Minutes 
7:00 a.m. June 23, 2016 
 

MINUTES OF A WORK SESSION OF THE 
INDEPENDENCE CITY COUNCIL  

THURSDAY, JUNE 23, 2016 –7:00 A.M. 
 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER. 
 
Pursuant to due call and notice thereof, a work session of the Independence City Council was called to order 
by Mayor Johnson at 7:00 a.m. 
 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE. 
 
Postponed until regular meeting. 
 
3. ROLL CALL  
 
PRESENT: Mayor Johnson, Councilors Spencer, Betts, McCoy and Grotting  
ABSENT: None 
STAFF: City Administrator Kaltsas, Administrative Assistant Beth Horner, Public Works Ende 
VISITORS: WHPS Chief Gary Kroells, ABDO Steve McDonald 
 
4.   Expenditure of remaining 2015 Street Overlay Bond Proceeds – Discussion relating to utilizing 

remaining proceeds. 
 
Kaltsas noted most of the work was completed last year with the exception of the City parking lot. He said 
there was also a recent water main (sewer) break on South Lake Sarah Drive that will need to be patched. 
Kaltsas said the roads project came in under budget and the remaining funds need to be spent before the end 
of the year. Kaltsas said remaining work is going to come in around 100k. He said the Independence portion 
of the Maple Plain reconstruction efforts of Budd Avenue will be approximately 19k. A sewer oversizing cost 
to upgrade that pipe along Budd Avenue is a portion of that cost coming in at 12k. Kaltsas noted 
Independence will receive a credit of $4500 for the costs absorbed for Maple Plain portion on previous road 
repair. Kaltsas said there is about 133k remaining in the roads fund.  
 
Kaltsas said Staff has looked at two separate road projects coming up; black top material and seal coat for 
Independence Road/ Hillstrom. Kaltsas said Staff is also looking at potentially tiling on Lake Sarah Drive. 
 
Betts said if they were going to sealcoat Independence Road they might as well do the whole thing. Spencer 
said the extra funds will help out with the City reserve at the end of the year. Kaltsas said Staff will lay out a 
whole capital plan for roads including gravel, seal coat and tiling that will provide a ten year snapshot. 
Johnson said this could be put together and then the Resolution brought before City Council.  
 
5. 2017 Budget Introduction – discussion relating to initial assumptions and budget process. 
 
Kaltsas said this item is to lay out items in the budget and get an idea of what it will entail. Johnson asked if 
there was a number from the county on the valuation for the City. McDonald said the tax capacity is 5.6 
higher than last year. Kaltsas noted the budget gets skewed as far as Public Works as hours pieced out to 
sewer are not used but are allocated in that budget. McDonald stated the overall levy is about 5%. 
 



 

2 
City of Independence 
City Council Work Session Minutes 
7:00 a.m. June 23, 2016 
 

Kroells said cost to Independence for police is estimated to go up approximately 120k. Kroells stated WHPS 
is laying out a 5-8 year capital plan as well. He noted radios and other technology are outdated and it is no 
longer cost effective to repair.  
 
Kaltsas noted the tax capacity is going to have a better increase than last year which will help budgeting. He 
said without raising the tax rate additional revenue will be captured due to the increased capacity. McDonald 
stated that 120k increase is what is needed if the police budget increases 9%. Kaltsas noted the rate increase 
last year. Johnson stated this is just the City and doesn’t include what the County will do. Kaltsas said this is a 
look at the framework for the budget and a first blush will be provided at the City Council meeting in July. 
McDonald noted there was a lot of clean up done to the budget last year and there will most likely be more 
adjustments to make it a solid representation. Kaltsas said the biggest factors last year were the police, fire 
and bond payments. McCoy said he would like to keep the tax rate flat as values go up. Spencer noted Police 
cost go up each year and there is not much that can be done about that. Betts asked what the benefit was when 
a new home is built in the City. Kaltsas stated it increases the tax capacity and the City receives additional 
revenue.  
 
6. Shrine Circus- Shrine Horsemen discussion relating to hosting circus in Independence. 
 
Kaltsas said Larry Messerly with the Shrine Circus asked about the possibility of having the Circus at the 
Shriner barn and property. The event is usually held at the Target Center but they were not able to get the 
dates they needed this year. Kaltsas said they get about 3000 people per show and hold six shows over the 
weekend. He said they would use tents. Johnson said it may work better if they used Pioneer Park. Kroells 
cautioned with that number of people County Road 90 would be shut. He noted the circus previously held at 
the park drew about 500 people. McCoy noted it would be a big donation to the park fund. Betts asked if they 
have ever held an event like this without the amenities available at the Target Center. Grotting said big events 
like this promote the City. McCoy said it would be more professional than the Circus the City has hosted 
previously. Spencer said more information was needed to understand the scope and possibilities.  
 
7. LMCC Update – update from Council Member Grotting 
 
Grotting said Maple Plain is leaving the LMCC at the end of the year. There is less than ½ members from the 
start and may not be sustainable. Grotting wondered if the charter was obsolete. He said smaller 
municipalities benefit the most from the LMCC. He noted the City has signed on for another 10 year 
agreement. Grotting said other cities are opting to do the LMCC functions themselves and uploading 
meetings, etc. to the internet instead of relying on cable. Grotting said for the 12k we pay the City is getting a 
good value with the cable programming.  
 
Vose stated about 50% have service. Grotting said people are moving away from cable. McCoy said 
Mediacom is less reliable than Frontier. Spencer said if we have a 10 year commitment than there really is no 
reason to discuss at this point.  
 
8. Solar Ordinance Discussion  
 
Kaltsas noted the applicant wanted to know if they could move the solar discussion to the City Council 
meeting on July 26th instead of July 12th. Spencer noted the ordinance has specifically left out solar gardens. 
Kaltsas noted they do not have a CUP on the table but rather a text amendment and they want to address 
Council. Vose said Council would be denying the request by adopting the ordinance. Johnson said that other 
people are allowed to delay so he did not see a problem with the extension.  
 



 

3 
City of Independence 
City Council Work Session Minutes 
7:00 a.m. June 23, 2016 
 

9. City Council Electronic Packet/Device Consideration-  
 
Kaltsas said everyone is comfortable with going to electronic packets. He asked if the Council was interested 
in using City-owned devices or if they preferred to use their own. He noted the Planning Commission 
preferred to use their devices. Kaltsas checked with other cities and many issue a stipend and let the official 
decide what type of device to purchase or use that works best for them. He noted the convenience of using a 
platform (drop box) that all could access instead of sending emails. Grotting asked about potential liability 
issues if they use their own personal device. Vose stated it does mean make the device exempt from data 
practice laws just because it is a personal device. 
 
Spencer said he prefers that the City does not own the device and a stipend is provided as each new member 
comes on board. He said it would be simpler for the City. Kaltsas said it could be a one-time stipend. Vose 
stated the stipend would have to be done as a Resolution and not compensation.  
 
10. General Correspondence- brief mention of several upcoming items 
 

a) Council Meeting Schedule-August Primary Election Conflict 
b) Newsletter Update- City of Independence only Newsletter 
c) Hennepin County Assessor- Contract for Services 
d) Temporary Family Health Care Dwellings Ordinance-Discussion relating to recent legislation 

 
It was discussed and approved to have one meeting at the end of August and cancel the conflicting meeting in 
early August due to the Primary Election being held.  
 
Kaltsas said Maple Plain had opted out of doing the joint newsletter with Independence. Maple Plain is going 
to do their own newsletter and include it in their utility bills to save money. 
 
Kaltsas said there will be a new contract coming up for the Hennepin County Assessor and the services they 
provide. Johnson noted that through the RFP process they were the most reasonable.  
 
Kaltsas said the Temporary Family Health Care Dwelling Act that passed essentially allows someone to park 
a trailer or modular home on a driveway without getting a City permit. He said the City can “opt out” of the 
law by passing an Ordinance stating the “opt out” of the statutory requirement of the law. Kaltsas noted 
Independence does not allow a temporary structure of any kind. 
 
11. ADJOURN 
 
 
Johnson adjourned the work session at 8:45 a.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
______________________________ 
Trish Bemmels, Recording Secretary 



 

1 
City of Independence 
City Council Meeting Minutes 
7:30 p.m., June 28, 2016 
 

MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING OF THE 
INDEPENDENCE CITY COUNCIL  

TUESDAY, JUNE 28, 2016 -7:30 P.M. 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER. 
 
Pursuant to due call and notice thereof, a regular meeting of the Independence City Council was called to 
order by Councilor Brad Spencer at 7:30 p.m. 
 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE. 
 
Councilor Spencer led the group in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
3.  ROLL CALL  
 
PRESENT: Councilors Betts, Grotting, McCoy and Spencer  
ABSENT: Mayor Johnson 
STAFF: City Planner & City Administrator Mark Kaltsas, City Administrative Assistant Horner, City 

Attorney Vose 
VISITORS: Joe Baker 
 
4.  ****Consent Agenda**** 

 
All items listed under Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by Council and will be acted on by one 
motion.  There will be no separate discussion of these items. If discussion is desired, that item will be 
removed from the Consent Agenda and will be considered separately. 
 

a. Approval of City Council minutes from the June 14, 2016 City Council Meeting. 
b. Approval of Accounts Payable; Checks numbered 16220 and 16242-16274. 

a. For Information - Checks numbered 16221-16241 are Payroll Checks. 
b. Check numbered 16219 was approved on June 14 with the Accounts Payable. 

c. RESOLUTION 16-0628-01 – Revised resolution approving a minor subdivision of property 
owned by Jerry Wise into two lots – revised from the June 14, 2016 City Council Meeting. 

d. Approval of the 2016 Primary Election Judges. 
e. RESOLUTION 16-0628-02 – Establishing a Policy for the Council Member Technology Stipend. 
f. Approval of Large Assembly Permit as Follows: 

a. Wedding Celebration on the property Located at 4720 South Lake Sarah Drive – August 
20, 2016 

 
Motion by Betts, second by Grotting to approve Consent Agenda. Ayes: Betts, Grotting, McCoy and 
Spencer. Nays: None. Absent: Johnson. MOTION DECLARED CARRIED. 
 
5.   SET AGENDA – ANYONE NOT ON THE AGENDA CAN BE PLACED UNDER OPEN/MISC. 
 
Spencer added Pioneer Sarah Creek Watershed Update by Joe Baker as item 7 ½. 
 
6. REPORTS OF BOARDS & COMMITTEES BY COUNCIL AND STAFF 
 
 



 

2 
City of Independence 
City Council Meeting Minutes 
7:30 p.m., June 28, 2016 
 

Spencer attended the following meetings: 
 Highway 12 Event at MPFC 
 Planning Commission Meeting 
 Highway 12 Coalition Meeting 
 City Council Workshop 

 
Grotting attended the following meetings: 

 Maple Plain Annual Fire and Safety Meeting 
 Emergency Training for rail car accidents with Maple Plain, Loretto and Medina 
 City Council Workshop 

 
McCoy attended the following meetings: 

 City Council Workshop 
 
Betts attended the following meetings: 

 City Council Workshop 
 Maple Plain Annual Fire and Safety Meeting 

 
Johnson attended the following meetings: 
 
Horner attended the following meetings: 

 City Council Workshop 
 Planning Commission Meeting 

 
Kaltsas attended the following meetings: 
 
7. DIRECTOR GARY KROELLS, WEST HENNEPIN PUBLIC SAFETY - ACTIVITY REPORT FOR 

THE MONTH OF MAY, 2016. 
 

Kroells stated Independence has just shy of 2000 incidents to date. He highlighted a few cases.  
 
*for a complete report please see the City Council online meeting packet for June 28, 2016* 
 
Kroells said Night to Unite will take place on August 2nd with parties organized throughout Independence. He 
will provide a list to Council. Kaltsas thanked the Council members that attended the railroad safety training. 
Kroells stated a portable speed monitoring sign was acquired through a grant with CenterPoint. He said the 
sign has been placed in Lyndale for the time being and the residents are very appreciative.  He anticipates 
buying a second on in the future to have in the community. Kroells thanked the City of Independence for 
supporting the purchase of this sign. Kroells stated that July 13th will mark the pre-construction meeting for 
Highway 12 and installing the turn lanes. Actual construction is slated for July 22nd. Crews will be working at 
night. 
 
7.5 JOE BAKER- PIONEER SARAH CREEK WATERSHED 
 
Baker said as the appointed Commissioner on the Watershed he likes to update the Council periodically and 
appreciated being added to the agenda tonight. Baker said the Watershed is made up of six cities operating 
under a joint powers agreement. Baker said it is imperative to show progress to remain an entity. He said he is 
tasked with minimizing costs, raising awareness and getting projects funded. Baker said by design the JPA 



 

3 
City of Independence 
City Council Meeting Minutes 
7:30 p.m., June 28, 2016 
 

designates the cities as the leaders. One recent project that was funded was a feasibility project of the Baker 
Park Ravine and efforts to reduce phosphorous. Baker said the hope is to have tangible projects that are grant 
ready. 
 
Baker noted the City of Independence has spent 20k in optioning 100 projects. Of top concerns are addressing 
excess phosphorous and engaging the landowners. He said a good example is the finding used in the Serenity 
Hills development and working with the developer to make improvements. 
 
Baker noted the member assessments and said Independence is 38% of the allocation of the watershed based 
on market value. Independence will basically remain the same for next year as far as the number ($5.00 less 
next year). Baker said the watershed budget went up about 2% with no cost to Independence. 
 
Baker said the operating budget was 79k and they finished the year at 57k. Operating costs were well 
managed and administrative costs were down 16%. 133k was collected from the cities. Baker thanked the 
Council for their support and attendance at the watershed meetings. He said the county is going to be hiring a 
person to fill a Rural/Ag focused position.  
 
Baker spoke about the efforts towards Dance Hall Creek and funds designated for that project. He said in the 
last few years there have been positive strides with funding efforts. Baker noted the committee is looking at 
projects in depth to determine what can be done most effectively before going out and spending money. Baker 
said there is a team of professional technical advisors that play a role including Hakanson Anderson for the 
City of Independence. He said a lot of monitoring is done with Lake Sarah and Lake Independence as part of 
the Three Rivers Park District. He said Lake Sarah’s report card went from a D+ to a C which is a pretty 
remarkable step up. He noted the curly leaf treatments and removal of invasive species as well as favorable 
weather helped the progress.  
 
Betts asked if there was any education provided to the public about using fewer chemicals on their lawns. She 
noted the chemicals being used on lawns end up in our lakes and streams. Baker stated there cannot be 
phosphorous in lawn fertilizer. Betts said there are many other chemicals in fertilizer besides phosphorous and 
she believes people need to be educated about the detrimental effects. Baker said the lakes in the area are 
affected from phosphorous and a number of things that run off the land. He said the monitoring levels indicate 
it is not an impairment level.  
 
Baker said it is important not to move backwards and much needs to be done in Ag efforts. He stated over the 
years there has been a lot of tiling of Ag properties and that education is needed. He noted there was a resident 
who drained the wetland and possibly did not understand that that was a violation of the watershed. Baker 
noted Spencer provided the leadership needed to educate the landowner with the importance of getting the 
land restored. He noted situations like this have occurred over decades. Baker said the City is demonstrating a 
clear image of what is expected going forward to protect the watershed and stop the violations. 
 
Spencer noted that the budget increase was only 2%. He said the commission has done an extraordinary job of 
keeping expenses in check and should be commended for that. Spencer said the budget is not subject to the 
Council’s approval but the Council has traditionally approved the efforts in a vote.  
 
Motion by Spencer, second by McCoy to approve 2017 Budget of the Pioneer Sarah Creek Watershed 
as presented by the Commissioner. Ayes: Betts, Grotting, McCoy and Spencer. Nays: None. Absent: 
Johnson. MOTION DECLARED CARRIED. 
 
 



 

4 
City of Independence 
City Council Meeting Minutes 
7:30 p.m., June 28, 2016 
 

8. HENNEPIN COUNTY ASSESSORS AGREEMENT – CONSIDERATION TO APPROVE 
AGREEMENT FOR ASSESSMENT SERVICES. 

 
Kaltsas stated this agreement would be for a four year contract. He said it is based on an estimated cost for the 
first year of the contract and subsequent years are based on actual costs. Actual costs are based on parcel 
costs, unit breakdown and new construction. Kaltsas provided a five year history of the estimated costs and 
actual costs. The estimated cost for 2016 was 55k and the actual cost came in at 57k. He said the estimated 
cost for the new contract for 2017 is 60k representing a 7-8% increase and that is based on anticipated new 
construction and reevaluation of existing properties.  
 
McCoy asked why the 2016 number went over the estimate by 5%. Kaltsas said it fluctuates based on true 
costs and relates to parcels, reevaluations and new construction. He noted the agreement has a max increase 
provision that caps the assessment increase amount. McCoy said he understood the new parcel variations but 
it is going to be important to try and hold the budget for the City. Kaltsas said it was important to trust them or 
say no to the agreement noting this is an estimate and not actual. McCoy said he didn’t understand the 
philosophy of the agreement. Betts noted when the City went out for bids others were more expensive than 
Hennepin County. Vose stated the City would have the right to terminate for “just cause” and the County 
would have to justify their numbers per the contract. Kaltsas said Hennepin County does provide the detail 
annually. Spencer stated this is a typical contract with the County and that the Assessor’s office has been fair 
to us and less than other providers have quoted. He noted it has been a working arrangement.  
 
Motion by Grotting, second by Betts to accept the Hennepin County Assessors contract. Ayes: Betts, 
Grotting, McCoy and Spencer. Nays: None. Absent: Johnson. MOTION DECLARED CARRIED. 
 

9. JOINT POWERS AGREEMENT WITH THE CITY OF GREENFIELD – CONSIDERATION TO 
APPROVE JPA TO MEMORIALIZE CERTAIN MAINTENANCE ACTIVITIES ON LAKE 
SARAH. 

 
Kaltsas explained this would be a JPA with Greenfield to execute an agreement for the removal of bogs on 
Lake Sarah. Currently, residents and members of the association corral and tie up the bogs so they don’t block 
the weir structure. The bogs are extremely heavy and difficult to move. Kaltsas said the cities of Greenfield 
and Independence have met with the Three Rivers Park District to see if a new or gate could be added so the 
bogs would not be able to block the weir. It was determined that it was not feasible to construct a new 
gate/weir as it would be extremely expensive. A memorandum between Greenfield and Three Rivers Park 
District was developed allowing Greenfield to scoop out the bogs and lay them on the Three Rivers Park 
property to dry out. Eventually the bogs would be hauled out.  
 
The City of Greenfield presented the City of Independence with the annual cost of these efforts. Kaltsas said 
the number and size of the bogs can vary from year to year based on the lake level. The JPA details that the 
City of Greenfield would be responsible for the doing the work and the City of Independence would 
reimburse Greenfield up to 2k annually for those efforts. The estimated cost is $2700 but that is a worst case 
scenario and an estimate as this has not been done before. Kaltsas said that is why the cap is built into the 
agreement. The JPA agreement is that the City of Independence is 2/3 of the dollar total and the City of 
Greenfield is the other 1/3. Betts noted it could be terminated at any time so that offers protection to the City 
if the JPA does not work out. Spencer noted Greenfield is not charging the City of Independence for the 
equipment but only for the fuel.  
 



 

5 
City of Independence 
City Council Meeting Minutes 
7:30 p.m., June 28, 2016 
 

Motion by Betts, second by Grotting to approve the JPA with the City of Greenfield for maintenance 
activities on Lake Sarah. Ayes: Betts, Grotting, McCoy and Spencer. Nays: None. Absent: Johnson. 
MOTION DECLARED CARRIED. 
 

10. CONSIDERATION OF APPROVING LOWEST QUOTE FOR 2016 SEAL COAT PROJECT: 
 

a. RESOLUTION 16-0628-03 – Approving the lowest quotation for the 2016 Seal Coat Project 
which includes Independence and Hillstrom Roads 

 
 
Kaltsas said this was discussed at the workshop. This is an item to seal quote all of Independence and 
Hillstrom Road. The lowest bid was Pearson Brothers. Total expenditure was $60,564.90. 27k would be 
coming from the City’s current budget. July 6th would be the anticipated start date. CodeRed would be utilized 
to notify affected residents. 
 
Motion by McCoy, second by Grotting to approve the quote for the 2016 Seal Coat Project as defined. 
Ayes: Betts, Grotting, McCoy and Spencer. Nays: None. Absent: Johnson. MOTION DECLARED 
CARRIED. 
 

11. OPEN/MISC. 
 

12. ADJOURN. 
 
 
Motion by Grotting, second by McCoy to adjourn at 8:40 p.m. Nays: None. Absent: Johnson. MOTION 
DECLARED CARRIED. 
 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
___________________ 
Trish Bemmels/ Recording Secretary 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







































 Page 1 

 

City of Independence 

Consider Amendment to the City’s “No Wake” Ordinance – Section 915 

 

To: City Council  

From: Mark Kaltsas, City Administrator 

Meeting Date: April 12, 2016 

 
 
Discussion: 
The City of Independence in collaboration with the City of Greenfield and the Department of 
Natural Resources established an ordinance to address no wakes on Lake Sarah in 2011.  The 
ordinance stipulated no-wake restriction criteria for both Lake Sarah and Lake Independence.  
The criteria for establishing the no-wake provisions are the same; however, the provisions for 
removing the no-wake status are inconsistent.   
 
City Council reviewed this issue in April and directed staff to prepare an amendment to the 
ordinance for further consideration.  A draft ordinance with amended language has been prepared 
by the City.  The proposed amendment would make the process for removing the no-wake 
restriction consistent on both Lake Sarah and Lake Independence.  The current ordinance 
provides for the removal of the no-wake restriction on Lake Sarah immediately following the 
recession of the water level below the specified elevation.  On Lake Independence, the ordinance 
stipulates that the no-wake restriction will be removed following the lake level remaining below 
the specified elevation for a period of three consecutive days.   
 
The Lake Sarah Association has been notified of the proposed change and invited to this Council 
Meeting.  Following discussion and further consideration of the draft ordinance by the City 
Council, a final ordinance can be considered at a future meeting.  Coordination will be required 
with the City of Greenfield and the Department of Natural Resources. 
 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  Draft Ordinance Amendment 
 
    
 



 

CITY OF INDEPENDENCE 
COUNTY OF HENNEPIN 
STATE OF MINNESOTA 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2016 -_______ 

AMENDING CITY CODE SECTION 915 -REGULATION OF LAKE SARAH AND LAKE 
INDEPENDENCE SURFACE USE 

 
   
THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF INDEPENDENCE, HENNEPIN COUNTY, 
MINNESOTA, ORDAINS: 

Section 1.  Section 915 of the City Code is amended as follows (additions shown as bold/double 
underline; deletions shown as strikethrough): 

 
 
Section 915 - Regulation of Lake Sarah and Lake Independence Surface Use 
(Added, Ord. 00-11) 
 
915.01. Authority to regulate water surface use. Pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, sections 
86B.205 and 459.20, the city has entered into a joint powers agreement with the city of 
Greenfield for the purpose of regulating the surface use of the body of water known as Lake 
Sarah. This section 915 is effective until repealed or until the joint powers agreement is 
terminated. 
 
915.03. Definitions. Subdivision 1. 
 

(a)  Terms used in this section related to boating, including “slow no-wake,” are 
defined in Minnesota Statutes, section 86B.005. 

 
(b)  Lake Sarah is that body of water designated by the Minnesota Department of 

Natural Resources as lake #27-191. It is located in: sections 1 and 2, township 
118, range 24; and in sections 34 and 35, township 119, range 24, Hennepin 
County, Minnesota. 

 
915.05. Slow no-wake zone on Lake Sarah.  Subdivision 1. No-wake in channel. No person 
shall operate a watercraft, including aircraft, in excess of slow no-wake speed in the channel 



separating the northerly and southerly halves of Lake Sarah as delineated by markers, buoys, or 
other aids to navigation placed by the city. (Amended, Ord. No. 2002-09) 
 

Subd. 2. No-wake at high water level. Whenever the waters of Lake Sarah reach or 
exceed 981.1 feet above sea level, for a period of three consecutive days or more, as measured by 
the water level gauge set by the State Department of Natural Resources on Lake Sarah, the city 
administrator-clerk or designee may, at their discretion, upon notifying the Hennepin county 
sheriff, establish a slow no-wake zone on those portions of the lake within the city.   The no wake 
restriction shall become effective upon a date specified by the city administrator-clerk and 
shall remain in effect until the water level for the lake has receded below 981.1 feet above sea 
level. Both the implementation and removal of these restrictions must be done in coordination with 
similar actions by the city of Greenfield. The city administrator-clerk or designee shall notify the 
public of both the implementation and removal of the no-wake restriction by publishing a notice 
in the official newspaper, posting the restriction at all public lake access points prior to and during 
the time the restriction is in place, and posting the restriction at city hall, and by such other means 
as the administrator-clerk determines to be reasonable. (Added, Ord. No. 2002-09) 
 

Subd. 3. No-wake regulation. No person shall operate a water craft, including aircraft, in 
excess of slow no-wake speed 24 hours per day when the high water slow no-wake restrictions in 
subdivision 2 are in effect.  Such restrictions shall become effective upon publication in a local 
daily newspaper as a news item or on a specified date, whichever is later. (Added, Ord. No. 
2002-09) 
 
      Subd.4.  Effective Date of slow no-wake regulation.  A slow no-wake restriction shall 
become effective upon the date specified by the city administrator-clerk and shall remain in 
effect until the water level for the lake has receded below 981.1 feet above sea level for at least 
three consecutive days. 
 
915.07. Notification. The city is responsible for providing adequate notification to the public,. 
which shall include p. Placement of a sign at each public watercraft access outlining essential 
elements of this section, as well as the placement of necessary buoys and signs shall be the 
responsibility of the Lake Sarah Improvement Association. 
 
915.09. Exemption. Enforcement, resource management and emergency personnel, while in the 
performance of their official duties, are exempt from the provisions of subsection 915.05. 
 
915.11. Penalties. Any person violating this section, upon conviction, is guilty of a 
misdemeanor and subject to a maximum fine or a maximum period of imprisonment, or both, as 
specified by Minnesota Statutes, section 609.03. 
 
915.13. Enforcement. The Hennepin County sheriff’s department and special deputies 
appointed and sworn by the sheriff have primary responsibility for enforcing the provisions of 
this section, but that does not preclude enforcement by other licensed peace officers, including 
aircraft except during landings and take-offs, in excess of slow no-wake speed on the entire lake  
when the high water slow no-wake restrictions are in effect.  Both the implementation and removal 
of these restrictions must be done in coordination with action by the city of Medina.  (Amended, 
Ord. 2014-02) 
 
915.15. Authority to regulate water surface use. Pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, sections 459.20, 
471.59 and 86B.205, Independence has entered into a joint powers agreement with the city of 
Medina for the purpose of regulating the surface use of the body of water known as Lake 



Independence. This section shall be effective after adoption and publication and after adoption of a 
similar ordinance by Medina. This section shall remain in effect until repealed or until the joint 
powers agreement is terminated. (Added, Ord. 2006-05)  
 
915.17. Definitions. Subdivision 1. The terms used in this section related to boating, including 
“slow no-wake,” shall have the meanings given to them in Minnesota Statutes, section 86B.005. 
(Added, Ord. 2006-05) 
 
Section 2.   The City Administrator is hereby directed to amend the City of Independence City 
Code in accordance with the foregoing amendment. 
 
Section 3.  Effective date.  This ordinance shall be and is hereby declared to be in full force and 
effect after its passage and publication according to law. 
  
 
Adopted this __ day of July, 2016. 
 
         
       Marvin D. Johnson, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
______________________________ 
Mark Kaltsas, City Administrator 



1665	Copeland	Road	Rural	View	Lot	Minor	Subdivision–	City	Council	 7.12.2016	 	
	 Page	1	

 

City of Independence 

Request for a Minor Subdivision to Permit a Rural View Lot 

on the Property located at 1665 Copeland Road  

 

To: City Council  

From: Mark Kaltsas, City Planner 

Meeting Date: July 12, 2016 

Applicants: Jeff Arendt 

Owners: Jeff Arendt 

Location: 1665 Copeland Road 

 

Request: 
Jeff Arendt (Applicant/Owner) requests that the City consider the following actions for the 
property located at 1665 Copeland Road (PID No. 19-118-24-44-0001) in Independence, MN: 
 

1. A rural view lot subdivision to allow the subdivision of property into two lots. 
 
 

Property/Site Information: 
The subject property is bounded on three sides by public roads.  It is located at the intersections 
of Copeland Road and Dean Lane and Nelson Road and Dean Lane.  There is an existing home 
and large detached accessory structure on the property.  The property is primarily agriculture 
with some tree coverage in the southeast corner.  The property has the following site 
characteristics:    
 

Property Information: 1665 Copeland Road  
 Zoning: Agriculture 
 Comprehensive Plan: Agriculture 
 Acreage (Before): 75.85 acres 
 Acreage (After): Parcel A - 8.12 acres 
      Parcel B – 67.73 acres 
  
  



1665	Copeland	Road	Rural	View	Lot	Minor	Subdivision–	City	Council	 7.12.2016	 	
	 Page	2	

 

1665 Copeland Road 

  
 

Discussion: 
The applicant is proposing to subdivide the property in order to create a rural view lot.  The 
applicant is proposing to create one (1) rural view lot in accordance with the provisions set forth 
in the City’s Zoning Ordinance.  The subject property has a total acreage of 75.85 acres.  The 
provisions in the Agriculture Zoning District allow one (1) rural view lot for every 40 acres of 
land under the same ownership.  Under the current zoning standards, the subject property has the 
ability to realize one (1) rural view lot for a total of two (2) lots on this property.   
 
Rural view lots must have the following characteristics: 
  

Lot size required - between 2.5 and 10 acres 
Lot size proposed – South Parcel – 8.12 acres 
 
Minimum lot frontage required – 300 LF (for property between 5-10 acres) 
Minimum lot frontage proposed –Parcel A – 1,246 LF    



1665	Copeland	Road	Rural	View	Lot	Minor	Subdivision–	City	Council	 7.12.2016	 	
	 Page	3	

 

 
Ratio of lot frontage to lot depth required - no more than 1:4 
Ratio of lot frontage to lot depth proposed – Parcel A - ~1:2 (436.04:809.96) 
 

In addition to the minimum size necessary to subdivide, the ordinance requires a minimum of 2.5 
acres of buildable upland, 300 LF of frontage on a right of way and no greater than a 1:4 ratio of 
lot frontage to lot depth for each rural view lot.  Based on the proposed subdivision, the rural 
view lot would have approximately 8.12 acres of useable upland and over 1,200 LF of frontage 
on Nelson Road and Dean Lane.  The proposed lot depth to lot frontage ratio for the rural view 
lot would be ~1:2. 
 
The proposed subdivision would produce an approximate 8.12 acre rural view lot.  The proposed 
newly created property would be “in line” with the property to the south and located primarily 
along Nelson Road.  The proposed Parcel A would accommodate a new building pad given its 
overall size, topography and proposed dimensions.  Any development on the property would 
need to meet all applicable setbacks including those from wetlands.   The City received an on-
site septic report verifying that the proposed rural view lot can accommodate a primary and 
secondary on-site septic system.  Access to the property can be located off of either Nelson Road 
or Dean Lane given its frontage on both streets.  The applicant has included the requisite 
drainage and utility easements as required by ordinance (Section 500.15, Subd.’s 1 and 2) for 
both the existing and proposed parcels. 
 
The remaining 67.73 acres would continue to be a conforming lot of record.  The remaining lot 
would have access on Kuntz Drive.  The City’s subdivision ordinance allows lots on a cul-de-sac 
to have a minimum right of way frontage of 50 LF.  The existing home and detached accessory 
structure meet all applicable setbacks in the after condition. 
 
The newly created Parcel A will be required to pay the City’s requisite Park Dedication fee.  For 
this property the requirement is $6,500.  This fee will need to be paid prior to recording the 
subdivision.    

 
Park dedication fee of $3,500 per lot up to 4.99 acres, 

plus $750 per acre for each acre over 5acres 
 
 
Summary: 
The proposed subdivision appears to meet all of the applicable standards of the City’s zoning and 
subdivision ordinance.  The lot being created will fit into the surrounding area and have minimal 
impacts on the surrounding properties.  



1665	Copeland	Road	Rural	View	Lot	Minor	Subdivision–	City	Council	 7.12.2016	 	
	 Page	4	

 

Neighbor Comments: 
The City received comments from the neighboring property owner who asked questions relating 
to the type of house being proposed on the subdivided lot.  The applicant responded and noted 
that they were working on the house plans and would be happy to talk further with the neighbor.  
Planning Commissioners noted that the City does not have architectural standards pertaining to 
new home construction aside from minimum square footage requirements. 
 
 
Planning Commission Discussion: 
Commissioners discussed the proposed minor subdivision and asked questions of staff and the 
applicant.  Commissioners found the proposed minor subdivision to permit a rural view lot to 
meet the City’s requirements.  Planning Commissioners recommended approval of the proposed 
minor subdivision to the City Council. 
 
 
Recommendation: 
The Planning Commission recommended approval to the City Council of the requested Minor 
Subdivision with the following findings: 
 

1. The proposed minor subdivision for a rural view lot meets all applicable criteria and 
conditions stated in Chapter V, Section 500, Planning and Land Use Regulations of the 
City of Independence Zoning Ordinance. 

 
2. The Applicant shall pay the park dedication fees in the amount of $6,500, for the newly 

created Parcel A, prior to the applicant receiving final approval to record the subdivision 
by the City. 
 

3. The Applicant shall pay for all costs associated with the City’s review of the requested 
subdivision. 
 

4. The Applicant shall record the subdivision and City Council Resolution with the county 
within six (6) months of approval.  

 
5. The Applicant shall execute and record the requisite drainage and utility easements with 

the county within six (6) months of approval.  
 

6. The remaining Parcel B will have no remaining rural view lot eligibilities. 
 
Attachments: 

1. Property Pictures 
2. Proposed Subdivision Survey  
3. Proposed Septic Site Location Map 



1665	Copeland	Road	Rural	View	Lot	Minor	Subdivision–	City	Council	 7.12.2016	 	
	 Page	5	

 

Attachment #1 

1665 Copeland Road (looking south) 

 

 

1665 Copeland Road (looking east) 

 









 

RESOLUTION NO. 16-0712-01 

 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING A MINOR SUBDIVISION TO ALLOW A RURAL VIEW LOT 
SUBDIVISION AS REQUESTED BY JEFF ARENDT FOR THE  

PROPERTY LOCATED AT 1665 COPELAND ROAD  
 

WHEREAS, the City of Independence (the “City) is a municipal corporation under the laws 
of Minnesota; and 

WHEREAS, the City adopted a Comprehensive Plan in 2010 to guide the development of 
the community; and  

WHEREAS, the City has adopted a Zoning Ordinance and other official controls to assist in 
implementing the Comprehensive Plan; and  

1. WHEREAS, Jeff Arendt (the “Applicant”) has submitted a request for a minor 
subdivision to allow a rural view lot subdivision for the property located at 1665 Copeland 
Road (PID No. 19-118-24-44-0001); and  

WHEREAS, the Property is zoned Agriculture; and 

WHEREAS the requested minor subdivision meets all requirements, standards and 
specifications of the City of Independence subdivision and zoning ordinance for Agriculture 
property; and 

WHEREAS the Planning Commission held a public hearing on June 21, 2016 to review the 
application for a minor subdivision, following mailed and published noticed as required by law; 
and  

WHEREAS, the City Council has reviewed all materials submitted by the Applicant; 
considered the oral and written testimony offered by the applicant and all interested parties; and has 
now concluded that the application is in compliance with all applicable standards and can be 
considered for approval. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
INDEPENDENCE, MINNESOTA, that it should and hereby does approve the application by Jeff 



Arendt for a minor subdivision to allow a rural view lot subdivision per the City’s subdivision and 
zoning regulations with the following conditions: 

 
1. The proposed minor subdivision for a rural view lot subdivision meets all applicable 

criteria and conditions stated in Chapter V, Section 500, Planning and Land Use 
Regulations of the City of Independence Zoning Ordinance. 

 
2. Subject to the City Council’s final approval of the minor subdivision, the applicant shall 

complete the following items: 
 
A. The Applicant shall provide a revised survey indicating all easements for drainage 

and utilities as required by and in accordance with the City’s subdivision ordinance 
for both the existing and newly created parcels (Section 500.15, Subd.’s 1 and 2). 
 

B. The Applicant shall pay the park dedication fees in the amount of $6,500, for the 
newly created Parcel A. 

 
3. The remaining Parcel B will have no remaining rural view lot eligibilities. 

 
4. The Applicant shall pay for all costs associated with the City’s review of the requested 

minor subdivision. 
 

5. The Applicant shall execute and record the requisite drainage and utility easements with 
the county within six (6) months of approval.  

 
6. The Applicant shall record the subdivision and City Council Resolution with the county 

within six (6) months of approval.  
 
 

This resolution was adopted by the City Council of the City of Independence on this 
12th day of July, 2016, by a vote of ____ayes and ____nays. 
         
 

______________________________ 
       Marvin Johnson, Mayor 
ATTEST: 

 __________________________________ 
Mark Kaltsas, City Administrator 
 

 

(SEAL) 

 


	0712 City Council Agenda
	Work Session City Council Minutes 6-23-2016 - 2Draft
	City Council Minutes Draft 6-28-16
	Running of The Bays 2016
	MN Ultimate Tournament
	CC Meeting_Ammend No Wake Ordinance_071216
	No Wake Ordinance Amendment 7.12.2016
	Arendt Residence Minor Subdivision_City Council_7.12.2016
	Arendt Lot Subdivision2016
	16-0232 CS (BEFORE) 5-4-16
	16-0232 CS (AFTER) 5-4-16
	Arendt Residence Subdivision Resolution 7.12.2016

